
OPERATIONS & ADMINISTRATIVE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA 

Called by:  Keith McDonald, Chairman DATE: THURSDAY, APRIL 20, 2023     
Members:  John Butitta, Paul Arena, TIME: 5:30 PM 
Joe Hoffman, Jaime Salgado, Valerie 
Hanserd, Michael Thompson 

LOCATION:   ROOM 303 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BLDG 
404 ELM STREET 
ROCKFORD, IL 61101 

AGENDA: 

A. Call to Order

B. Roll Call

C. Approval of March 16, 2023 Minutes

D. Public Comment – This is the time we invite the public to address the Operations and 
Administrative Committee with issues and concerns.  We ask you to limit your comments 
to three minutes.  Personal attacks or inappropriate language of any sort will not be 
tolerated.  We will allow a maximum of five speakers on a first come basis with sign up at 
the meeting.  Speakers may not address zoning matters which are pending before the ZBA, 
the Zoning Committee or the County Board.  Personnel matters or pending or threatened 
litigation may not be addressed in open session.  An individual may speak a maximum of 
three times per calendar year on the same topic.  This prohibition shall include the repetition 
of the same topic in a statement on what is purported to be a different topic.  After 
acknowledgement by the chair, please stand and state your name.  Thank you.

E. Resolution Approving a Proposal for the Professional Services of Larson & Darby Group 
for Winnebago County Courthouse Code Compliance Repairs

F. Resolution to Approve Purchase of Vehicles for Sheriff’s Department with CIP PSST 2023 
Funds

G. Resolution Awarding Joint Pest Control Services

H. Resolution Amending the Organizational Structure of the River Bluff Nursing Home Board 
of Directors

I. An Ordinance Amending “Ordinance 2018 CO 092”, Prohibiting The Use of Ground 
Water as a Potable Water Supply by The Installation or Use of Potable Water Supply 
Wells or by Any Other Method

J. Future Agenda Items

K. Adjournment 



 

 

 Page 1  
  

Winnebago County Board 
Operations and Administrative Committee Meeting 

County Administration Building 
404 Elm Street, Room 303 

Rockford, IL 61101 
 

Thursday, March 16, 2023 
5:30 PM 

 
 
Present: Others Present: 
Keith McDonald, Chairperson 
Valerie Hanserd, Vice Chairperson 
Paul Arena 
Joe Hoffman 
Jaime Salgado 
Michael Thompson 
 
Absent: 
John Butitta 

Patrick Thompson, County Administrator 
Dave Rickert, Chief Financial Officer 
Ann Johns, Purchasing Director 
Lafakeria Vaughn, State’s Attorney’s Office 
Rick Ciganek, Sheriff’s Office 
Lori Gummow, County Clerk & County Recorder 
Matt Laue, Coroner’s Office 
Michaela Bradley, IT Department 

 
AGENDA:        

A. Call to Order  
B. Roll Call 
C. Approval of January 5, 2023 Minutes 
D. Public Comment – This is the time we invite the public to address the Operations and 

Administrative Committee with issues and concerns.  We ask you to limit your 
comments to three minutes.  Personal attacks or inappropriate language of any sort 
will not be tolerated.  We will allow a maximum of five speakers on a first come basis 
with sign up at the meeting.  Speakers may not address zoning matters which are 
pending before the ZBA, the Zoning Committee or the County Board.  Personnel 
matters or pending or threatened litigation may not be addressed in open session.  An 
individual may speak a maximum of three times per calendar year on the same topic.  
This prohibition shall include the repetition of the same topic in a statement on what 
is purported to be a different topic.  After acknowledgement by the chair, please stand 
and state your name.  Thank you.  

E. Resolution Awarding Bid for Joint Seal Coating Services 
F. Resolution Awarding Agreement for Office Supplies 
G. Resolution to Approve Purchase of Morgue Equipment Using CIP PSST 2023 Funds 
H. Resolution to Approve Purchase of Coroner Vehicles Using CIP PSST 2023 Funds 
I. Resolution to Include Compensation Paid Under Internal Revenue Code Section 125 

Plan as IMRF Earnings 
J. Discussion Regarding County’s 457(b) Plan and Selection of a New Plan 

Administrator 
K. Discussion Regarding County Administration Building Security 
L. Future Agenda Items 
M. Adjournment 

 
Chairperson McDonald called the meeting to order at 5:30 PM. 



 

 

 Page 2  
  

 
Roll Call 
Chairperson Keith McDonald yes, Paul Arena yes, Joe Hoffman yes, Jaime Salgado yes, 
Valerie Hanserd yes, Michael Thompson yes. 
 
Approval of January 5, 2023 Minutes 
Chairperson McDonald called for a motion to approve the January 5, 2023 minutes. 
Motion: Ms. Hanserd.  Second: Mr. Hoffman. 
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Public Comment 
Chairperson McDonald omitted reading the Public Comment Section of the Agenda due to no 
one present to speak.  
 
Resolution Awarding Bid for Joint Seal Coating Services 
Motion: Chairperson McDonald.  Second: Mr. Thompson. 
The Resolution awards a bid for seal coating services, an annual contract.   

• Discussion followed. 
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Resolution Awarding Agreement for Office Supplies 
Motion: Chairperson McDonald.  Second: Mr. Thompson.   
The Resolution authorizes the county to renew the contract with OfficePro (Mid City Office 
Supplies).   

• Discussion followed. 
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Resolution to Approve Purchase of Morgue Equipment Using CIP PSST 2023 Funds 
Motion: Chairperson McDonald.  Second: Mr. Salgado. 
The Resolution authorizes purchase of morgue equipment, using CIP 2023 funds.  Refer to 
attachment listing equipment to be purchased. 

• Discussion followed.   
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 

 
Resolution to Approve Purchase of Coroner Vehicles Using CIP PSST 2023 Funds 
Motion: Chairperson McDonald.  Second: Mr. Salgado. 
The Resolution is for the approval of Coroner vehicles using CIP 2023 funds.  Refer to the 
attachment. 

• Discussion followed.   
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Resolution to Include Compensation Paid Under Internal Revenue Code Section 125 Plan 
as IMRF Earnings 
Motion: Chairperson McDonald.  Second: Mr. Thompson. 
The Resolution amends the agreement with IMRF to include compensation paid under Internal 
Revenue Code Section 125 Plan as IMRF income.  

• Discussion followed.   
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 



 

 

 Page 3  
  

Discussion Regarding County’s 457(b) Plan and Selection of a New Plan Administrator 
Ms. Johns distributed information to the committee regarding the 457(b) Plan selection of a 
new plan administrator.  Mr. Rickert thanked Ms. Johns and the Purchasing department staff 
for their work in organizing the contract providers, presentations and documents.  A resolution 
will be prepared to present at the next committee meeting. 

• Discussion followed.   
 
Discussion Regarding County Administration Building Security 
Funds within the Phase III ARP Plan are set aside to address the issue of the administration 
building security enhancements.  A formal plan will be created to present to the committee. 

• Discussion followed.   
 
Future Agenda Items 

• Replacing Air Conditioning Units at Memorial Hall 
• Resolution to Add Two Additional Members to the River Bluff Board 
• Addition of a Buyer for the Purchasing Department 

 
Motion to Adjourn.   
Chairperson McDonald called for a motion to adjourn the meeting. 
Motion: Mr. Thompson.  Second: Mr. Salgado. 
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote.   

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Nancy Bleile 
Administrative Assistant 



County Board:  April 27, 2023 
 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 

   

2023 CR 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A PROPOSAL FOR THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES OF LARSON & DARBY 

GROUP FOR WINNEBAGO COUNTY COURTHOUSE CODE COMPLIANCE REPAIRS 
  

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use.  All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $25,000.00 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 
2-357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-
357 (g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Section 2-357(d)(3) of the Purchasing Ordinance of Winnebago County 
provides “Professional services of architects, engineers and land surveyors are governed by the 
requirements of the Local Government Professional Services Selection Act, 50 ILCS 510 et seq. 
(the "Act"), and by State, Federal and local policy, rules and regulations, depending upon the type 
of funding used. All professional service contracts or agreements for professional services using 
local funds for architectural, engineering or land surveying purposes, shall be subject to the Act. 
The use of state or federal funds for professional services shall be subject to the state and federal 
laws, policies, rules and regulations”; and,  

WHEREAS, Section 8 of the Act provides in part that certain requirements of the Act may 
be waived if it is determined by resolution that an emergency situation exists and a firm must be 
selected in an expeditious manner, or the cost of architectural, engineering, and land surveying 
services for the project is expected to be less than $40,000; and, 

WHEREAS, on November 5, 2022, a fire, which constitutes an emergency situation, 
occurred in the old County Courthouse at 403 Elm Street, Rockford, Illinois, causing extensive 
damage to the building and additional corrective measures are necessary to bring the building 
into compliance with the applicable building codes; and,   

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed Resolution Exhibit A – Larson & Darby Group 
Proposal- Winnebago County Courthouse Code Compliance Repairs for the 
aforementioned project and agrees with the awarding of the proposal as follows;  

 
 



LARSON & DARBY GROUP 
4949 HARRISON AVENUE, SUITE 100 
ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS 61108 
 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, that the County has issued, on behalf of the County of Winnebago, a proposal with 
LARSON & DARBY GROUP, 4949 HARRISON AVENUE, SUITE 100, ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS 61108. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Chief Financial Officer, County 
Administrator, Facilities Engineer, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board 
Office and County Auditor.                 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 



             Respectfully Submitted, 
                        OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Resolution Exhibit A













 

 
       Resolution Executive Summary 

For ARPA or CIP Projects 
    
 
Prepared By:  Purchasing Department for WCSO   
Committee Name: Operations and Administrative Committee   
Committee Date: April 20, 2023  
Resolution Title: Resolution to Approve Purchase of Vehicles for Sheriff’s Department  

with CIP PSST 2023 Funds  
 
Budget Information 
Budgeted? Yes, in CIP PSST 2023              Amount Budgeted?  $ 1,157,680 
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?   2023 CIP PSST Funds                            
If ARPA or CIP funded, original Board approved amount?   $1,157,680                         
Over or Under approved amount? OVER         By: $16,286.66 
Reason for ARPA or CIP increase?   Quotes higher on some add-on items 
If ARPA funded, was it approved by Baker Tilly?  N/A             
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: 82200-46410-C2305                       Descriptor: Vehicles 
Budget Impact? $  1,173,966.66 

 

Background Information:    The Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office request the purchase 
nineteen new vehicles, as follows:  
 

• Four unmarked detective vehicles, due to much wear & tear, and are over 10 years old.  
  

• Nine vehicles are for the Crime Deterrence Unit, which adds five additional vehicles and 
replaces four that are in extremely bad condition, with suspension and powertrain issues.    

 

• Six new patrol vehicles will replace the following existing vehicles: 
 

Squad  Make Year Mileage VIN 

316 Ford Utility Interceptor 2017            155,760  1FM5K8AR8HGC35370 
318 Ford Utility Interceptor 2017            172,338  1FM5K8AROHGC35363 
321 Ford Utility Interceptor 2017            155,724  1FM5K8AR1HGC35386 
322 Ford Utility Interceptor 2017            179,040  1FM5K8ARXHGC35368 
325 Ford Utility Interceptor 2017  car totaled  1FM5K8AR0HGC35380 
331 Ford Utility Interceptor 2017            158,200  1FM5K8AR9HGC35376 

 

As a part of the package, fifteen are 2023 Ford Explorer Interceptors and four are Ford Explorer 
Standard Base, with emergency lighting, sirens and gun loft.  Police radios will be provided by the 
Sheriff’s Office.  Other recycled equipment from existing cars, such as radar units, printers and 
Axon cameras will also be installed in some of the new vehicles. 
 

Recommended By:   Chief Deputy Dominick Barcellona recommends the purchases. 
 

Follow-Up Steps:     Purchasing Department will issue County Purchase Orders accordingly. 



 
County Board Meeting:  April 27, 2023 

 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 
   

2023 CR 
 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE PURCHASE OF VEHICLES FOR SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT WITH CIP PSST 

2023 FUNDS  
  

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use.  All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $25,000.00 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
(g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and, 

WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s Department is in need of purchasing nineteen new vehicles, with 
equipment, to replace fourteen existing vehicles and add five to their fleet; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for 
the County of Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed the quotes for the vehicles, Resolution 
Exhibit A, as well as, the quotes for equipment, Resolution Exhibit B. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 

Illinois that the County will issue, on behalf of the County of Winnebago, Purchase Orders with 
MORROW BROTHERS FORD, 1242 MAIN STREET, GREENFIELD, ILLINOIS, 62044 in the dollar 
amount of NINE HUNDRED, SIXTY-THREE THOUSAND, AND TEN  DOLLARS ($963,010.00), as well 
as, multiple vendors for equipment in the dollar amount of TWO HUNDRED, TEN THOUSAND, NINE 
HUNDRED, FIFTY-SIX DOLLARS AND SIXTY-SIX CENTS ($210,956.66) for a total amount not to 
exceed ONE MILLION, ONE HUNDRED, SEVENTY-THREE THOUSAND, NINE HUNDRED, SIXTY-SIX 
DOLLARS AND 66 CENTS ($1,173,966.66), or other providers. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Deputy Chief, Chief Financial 
Officer, County Administrator, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board Office 
and County Auditor.                 

 



 
             Respectfully Submitted, 

                        OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A







RESOLUTION EXHIBIT B































 
 
 

 
Resolution Executive Summary 

 
    
 
Prepared By:  Purchasing Department   
Committee Name: Operations and Administrative Committee   
Committee Date: April 20, 2023  
Board Date:  April 27, 2023     
Resolution Title: Resolution Awarding Joint Pest Control Services  
 

Budget Information 
Budgeted? YES               Amount Budgeted?    
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?   N/A                                       
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: Multiple by Location             Descriptor: Building Maintenance 

 

Background Information:  
All Winnebago County owned facilities require pest control services, which consists of labor and 
materials for the purpose of controlling rodents, roaches, ants, spiders, centipedes, silverfish, 
earwigs, beetles, and other insects/pests in County facilities.  
 
In 2018, the County was included the Rockford Park District’s Bid #18-2199 Joint Purchasing Pest 
Control Services as part of a joint purchasing initiative with other local entities.  Pearson 
Plumbing, Heating & Pest Control was the lowest responsive and responsible bidder and was 
awarded the multi-year contract. 
 
The contact expired March 31, 2023 and a new joint solicitation was issued by the Rockford Park 
District with the County of Winnebago requirements jointly included in a Request for Quotes for 
Joint Pest Control Services.  The formal quotes were due on March 31, 2023 and Pearson 
Plumbing, Heating & Pest Control was again the lowest responsive and responsible bidder.  See 
Resolution Exhibit A Bid Tab for specifics. 
 

        

Recommended By:   
Shawn Franks, Facilities Engineer, recommends awarding pest control services to Pearson 
Plumbing, Heating & Pest Control. 
 
Contract/Agreement Information:   
The contract is for an initial one-year term with four (4) additional one-year renewal options, 
not to exceed a total of five (5) years.  
 
Follow-Up Steps:   
Facilities Maintenance will work with the successful vendor on the pest control services 
schedule. 
 
  
 



County Board Meeting:  April 27, 2023 
 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 
   

2023 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING JOINT PEST CONTROL SERVICES 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use.  All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $25,000.00 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
(g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and, 

 

WHEREAS, all County of Winnebago owned facilities need pest control services; 
and, 

 

WHEREAS, the County participated in a joint solicitation with the Rockford Park 
District’s Request for Quotes for Joint Purchasing of Pest Control Services; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the Bid received for the aforementioned project and 
recommends awarding the contract as follows:  

 

PEARSON PLUMBING, HEATING & PEST CONTROL 
2415 20TH STREET 

ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS, 61104 
(See Bid Tab for Pricing - Resolution Exhibit A) 

 
 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the County Director of Purchasing is authorized to execute a contract award, on 
behalf of the County of Winnebago, with PEARSON PLUMBING, HEATING & PEST CONTROL, 2415 
20TH STREET, ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS, 61104. 
 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare 
and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Facilities Engineer, Director of Purchasing, 
Board Office, Finance Director and County Auditor. 

 
 



 
             Respectfully Submitted, 

                        OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



      
          Resolution Exhibit A Bid Tab 
 

RFQ TAB 
23B-2280 JOINT PEST CONTROL SERVICES- 

      MARCH 31, 2023 
 
   
 
 
 

                         
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Purchasing Department |  404 Elm St, Rm 202, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.gov 
 Phone: (815) 319- 4380  |  Fax: (815) 319-4381  |  Email: purchasing@purchasing.wincoil.gov 

 

 

                                                Summary 2023 
                         Joint Purchase of Pest Control Services at Various  
            Rockford Park District and Winnebago County Locations  
                                              Quote Opening: 3/31/2023  

 

 

Pearson Plumbing, Heating  
&  Pest Control 
2415 20th Street 

Rockford, IL 61104 

County of Winnebago Locations               Monthly fee 
Administration Building $50.00 
Adult Probation $45.00 
Courthouse $80.00 
Excelsior $45.00 
Juvenile Detention Center $85.00 
Juvenile Justice Center $40.00 
Maintenance Garage $40.00 
Memorial Hall $45.00 
Old Courthouse $40.00 
Public Safety Building $45.00 
River Bluff Nursing Home $150.00 
Winnebago County 911 $40.00 
Winnebago County 555 Court Street $60.00 
Winnebago County Animal Services $40.00 
Winnebago County Criminal Justice $195.00 
Winnebago County Health Department $40.00 
Winnebago County Highway Department $90.00 
Heat Treatment, per application                         $1,500.00  



 

   
     COUNTY BOARD MEETING: APRIL 27, 2023 

 
RESOLUTION 

OF THE 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
2023 CR _______ 

 
SUBMITTED BY:  OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 
SPONSORED BY: ANGIE GORAL, JAIME SALGADO, JOE HOFFMAN  

 
 

RESOLUTION AMENDING THE ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE OF THE  
RIVER BLUFF NURSING HOME BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
 

WHEREAS, on October 27, 2022, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois adopted a resolution, (2022-CR-142), which established the River Bluff Nursing Home 
Board of Directors (RBNH Board); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to said resolution, the RBNH Board shall be comprised of nine (9) 
members, including one (1) County Board member, and shall further be appointed by the 
Winnebago County Board Chairman with the advice and consent of the Winnebago County 
Board; and 

WHEREAS, on February 23, 2023, nine (9) members for the RBNH Board were 
appointed by the Winnebago County Board Chairman and approved by the Winnebago County 
Board; and 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board desires to amend the organizational structure 
of the RBNH Board to increase the total number of members from nine (9) to eleven (11) to 
allow for additional experienced and capable individuals to represent the interests of River Bluff 
Nursing Home and the residents of Winnebago County.  

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, that the River Bluff Nursing Home Board of Directors shall be comprised of eleven (11) 
total members, including one (1) County Board member, and appointed by the Winnebago 
County Board Chairman with the advice and consent of the Winnebago County Board 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board shall prepare and 
deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Administrator of River Bluff Nursing Home and 
the County Administrator.  



 

   
                                                                                                              Respectfully Submitted, 
                                                    OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 
 
Agree  Disagree 
 
 
 

  

Keith McDonald, Chairman 
 
 

 Keith McDonald, Chairman 
 
 

Valerie Hanserd 
 
 

 Valerie Hanserd 
 

Paul Arena 
 
 

 Paul Arena 
 
 

John Butitta 
 

 John Butitta 
 
 

Joe Hoffman 
 

 Joe Hoffman 
 
 

Jaime Salgado  Jaime Salgado 
 
 

Michael Thompson  Michael Thompson 
 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 
Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Chairman of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

 
 

Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board  
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 



 

1 
 

County Board Meeting 
    April 27, 2023 
 

ORDINANCE 
OF THE  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

2023 CO _____ 
 

SUBMITTED BY:  OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 

SPONSORED BY:  KEITH MCDONALD  
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING “ORDINANCE 2018 CO 092”, PROHIBITING 
THE USE OF GROUND WATER AS A POTABLE WATER SUPPLY BY THE 
INSTALLATION OR USE OF POTABLE WATER SUPPLY WELLS OR BY 

ANY OTHER METHOD 
 

WHEREAS, on October 11, 2018, the County Board of Winnebago County, 
Illinois (County) adopted an ordinance, 2018 CO 092, which prohibited the use of ground 
water as a potable water supply by the installation or use of potable water supply wells or 
by any other method for certain properties located with the county; and 

 
WHEREAS, said ordinance was also codified, in part, as Section 50-15 of the 

Winnebago County Code of Ordinances; and  
 
WHEREAS, certain property owners made a request to the County to amend the 

2018 ordinance and allow their specific properties to be excluded from said ordinance; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to and by approval of this amended ordinance, certain 

properties in unincorporated Winnebago County, Illinois, have been used over a period of 
time for commercial/industrial purposes; and 

 
WHEREAS, because of said use, concentrations of certain constituents in the 

groundwater beneath the County may exceed Class I groundwater quality standards for 
potable resource groundwater as set forth in 35 Illinois Administrative Code 620 or Tier 1 
remediation objectives as set forth in 35 Illinois Administrative Code 742; and  

 
WHEREAS, the above-described potential exceedances of Class 1 groundwater 

quality standards are not anticipated in the County’s deeper aquifers; and 
 
WHEREAS, Winnebago County desires to limit potential threats to human health 

from groundwater contamination while facilitating the redevelopment and productive use 
of properties that are the source of said chemical constituents.  

 
 



 

2 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois: 

 
Section One. Groundwater Use Restriction Area.  
 
Subject to the last sentence of this Section One, the use or attempted use of 

groundwater as a potable water supply from within the area shown by the dashed line on 
Exhibit A, attached to and made part of this ordinance, by the installation or drilling of 
wells or by any other method is hereby prohibited. This prohibition expressly includes 
Winnebago County. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the use or attempted use of 
groundwater as a potable water supply drawn from the Ironton-Galesville aquifer or a 
deeper aquifer within the properties indicated by a dotted line on Exhibit A, identified by 
PINs 16-31-100-020, 16-31-376-012, 16-31-376-009, 16-31-376-010, 16-31-376-013,  
16-13-100-017 and 16-31-100-021, is not prohibited.  

 
Section Two. Penalties. 
 
Any person violating the provisions of this ordinance shall be subject to a fine of 

up to One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00) for each violation. 
 
Section Three. Definitions. 
 
“Person” is any individual, partnership, co-partnership, firm, company, limited 

liability company, corporation, association, joint stock company, trust, estate, political 
subdivision, or any other legal entity, or their legal representatives, agents or assigns.  

 
“Potable water” is any water used for human or domestic consumption, including, 

but not limited to, water used for drinking, bathing, swimming, washing dishes, or 
preparing foods. 

 
Section Four. Repealer. 
 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby 

repealed insofar as they are in conflict with this ordinance. 
 
Section Five. Severability. 
 
If any provision of this ordinance or its application to any person or under any 

circumstances is adjudged invalid, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the 
ordinance as a whole or of any portion not adjudged invalid. 

 
Section Six. Effective Date. 
 
This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, approval 

and publication as required by law. 
   



 

3 
 

      Respectfully submitted, 
 

                                            OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 
 
AGREE       DISAGREE 
 
 
________________________________   __________________________________ 
Keith McDonald, Chairman         Keith McDonald, Chairman                               
                             
_________________________________          _________________________________ 
John Butitta             John Butitta 
 
_________________________________          _________________________________ 
Michael Thompson            Michael Thompson 
 
_________________________________           ________________________________ 
Paul Arena               Paul Arena  
 
_________________________________      ________________________________ 
Joe Hoffman                     Joe Hoffman 
 
_________________________________      _________________________________ 
Valerie Hanserd         Valerie Hanserd 
 
__________________________________        __________________________________ 
Jaime Salgado                     Jaime Salgado 
   
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, this ______ day of ___________________, 2023.  
  
  
       _____________________________ 
       Joseph V. Chiarelli 
       Chairman of the County Board 
       of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
Attested by: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 



STATE OF ILLINOIS, SS. 
COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO 

I, TIANA J. McCALL, County Clerk in and for said County, in the State 
aforesaid, do hereby certify that I have compared the foregoing attached copy of: 

AN ORDINANCE PROHIBITING THE USE OF GROUND WATER AS A 
POTABLE WATER SUPPLY BY THE INSTALLATION OR USE OF 

POTABLE WATER SUPPLY WELLS OR BY ANY OTHER METHOD 

  

  

  

with the original document which is on file in my office; and found it to be a true, perfect and 

complete copy of the original document. 

  

on, IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my 

St Me 3, hand and affixed the seal of said County, at my office in 

fa vd “Cz the City of Rockford, in said County, 
I AZ 

3! 4d 3 this_27th DAY _ OF NOVEMBER, 2018. 

“Oy Uno OF 
“UO CONS 

“etna TIANA J. McCALL , Winnebago County Clerk 
  

  

BY: Cong fir Ling Deputy County Clerk



Sponsored by: Gary Jury, Chairman 

COUNTY BOARD MEETING 

October 11, 2018 

ORDINANCE 

of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Submitted by: Operations & Administrative Committee 

2018 CO 092 

  

AN ORDINANCE PROHIBITING THE USE OF GROUND WATER AS A 

POTABLE WATER SUPPLY BY THE INSTALLATION OR USE OF POTABLE 

WATER SUPPLY WELLS OR BY ANY OTHER METHOD 

  

WHEREAS, certain properties in unincorporated Winnebago County, lllinois, have been used 

over a period of time for commercial/industrial purposes; and 

WHEREAS, because of said use, concentrations of certain chemical constituents in the 

groundwater beneath the County may exceed Class | groundwater quality standards for potable 

resource groundwater as set forth in 35 lilinois Administrative Code 620 or Tier 1 remediation objectives 

as set forth in 35 Illinois Administrative Code 742; and 

WHEREAS, Winnebago County desires to limit potential threats to human health from 

groundwater contamination while facilitating the redevelopment and productive use of properties that 

are the source of said chemical constituents; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BEITORDAINED BY THECOUNTY BOARD OF WINNEBAGO COUNTY, ILLINOIS: 

Section One. 

The use or attempted use of groundwater as a potable water supply from within the area shown 

on Exhibit A, attached to and made part of this ordinance, by the installation or drilling of wells 

or by any other method, is hereby prohibited. This prohibition expressly includes Winnebago 

County. 

Section Two. Penalties . 

Any person violating the provisions of this ordinance shall be subject to a fine of up to One 

Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00) for each violation. 

41 -10/11/18



Section Three. Definitions . 

"Person" is any individual, partnership, co-partnership, firm, company, limited liability company, 

corporation, association, joint stock company, trust, estate, political subdivision, or any other 

legal entity, or their legal representatives, agents or assigns. 

"Potable water" is any water used for human or domestic consumption, including, but not 

limited to, water used for drinking, bathing, swimming, washing dishes, or preparing foods. 

Section Four. Repealer. 

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed insofar 

as they are in conflict with this ordinance. 

Section Five. Severability. 

If any provision of this ordinance or its application to any person or under any circumstances is 

adjudged invalid, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the ordinance as a whole or of 

any portion not adjudged invalid. 

Section Seven. Effective date. 

This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, approval and 

publication as required by law. 

42 —- 16/11/18



Respectfully Submitted, 

OPERATIONS & ADMINISTRATIVE 

COMMITTEE 

AGREE DISAGREE 

     
  

GARY J JURY, § HAIRMAN GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN 

  

JEAN CROSBY 

ANGIE GORAL | 

    

JOE HOFFMAN 

KEITH MCDONALD 

  
Ett ICOLOSI ELI NicoLos! 

CR 
DOROTHY RED a) NTT DOROTHY REDD 
  

  

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this 12th day of __ October 2018. 

& O<— 

  

  

FRANK HANEY 

. CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

ATTESTED BY: OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Susu @)! Wea 0 
  

TIANA McCALL 

CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

43 -- 10/11/18



Ne
w 
M
r
 

 
 

Ba
xt
er
/;
Rd
 

W
i
n
 

ne
 
b
a
g
o
 

C 
ou
 

nt
y 

L
e
g
e
n
d
 

Gr
ou

nd
wa

te
r 

Us
e 

Re
st
ri
ct
io
n 

Ar
ea

 

ou
nt
y 

B
o
u
n
d
a
r
y
 

L_
 

Pa
rc
el
 
B
o
u
n
d
a
r
y
 

 
 

£0000¥LE9) 

16
31
37
60
04
 

9009LE LEO} 

10109251€9) 

60094E1£9) 

£LO9LELEDL 

5 [p
x | JE:
 

fi 
Uf N Kilbuck Rd IESE 

= 
=
F
 

I
E
d
s
o
n
:
R
d
 
r
r
r
 
 
 

Ex
hi
bi
t 

A 
G
r
o
u
n
d
w
a
t
e
r
 
Us
e 

Re
st

ri
ct

io
n 

Ar
ea
 
Ma
p 

A
c
m
e
 

So
lv

en
t 

Re
cl
ai
mi
ng
 

In
c.

 
Si
te
 

W
i
n
n
e
b
a
g
o
 

C
o
u
n
t
y
,
 

i 

E
n
v
i
r
o
n
m
e
n
t
a
l
 
Re

so
ur

ce
s 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 

w
w
w
.
 
.
e
r
m
.
c
o
m
 

 



COUNTY BOARD MEETING DATE: OCTOBER 11,2018 

69) COMMITTEE: Oper: ah one 2 Ad minisd redive. 

(d : 

  

  

   

  

SUBJECT: 

’ Vspply Toy the Unset «4 Porlabd 
WAY Jap 

AYES NAYES PRESENT ABSENT _ ABSTAINED 1.0) 
  

1. BIONDO, TED 

  

BOOKER, AARON 

BOOMER, DAVID 

CROSBY, JEAN 

  

  

El
 
I
d
 I 

  

5. FELLARS, DANIEL 

  

6. FIDUCCIA, DAVID 

  

7. GERL, BURT 
  

8. GORAL, ANGIE 

  

9. HOFFMAN, JOE 

  

10. JURY, GARY 

  

11. KELLEY, DAVID 

  

12. MCDONALD, KEITH 

  

13. NICOLOSI, ELI 

  

14. REDD, DOROTHY 

  

15. SALGADO, JAIME 

  

16. SCHULTZ, STEVE 

  

17. TASSONI, DAVID 

  

18. WEBSTER, JIM 

  

19. WESCOTT, FRED 

  

20. WILSON, L.C. 

                “I
N 

S
S
N
S
 

N
N
 
N
E
S
S
 
S
R
S
 

TOTALS on 
4) t

—
 

 



COUNTY BOARD MEETING DATE: OCTOBER 11, 2018 

COMMITTEE: Optra; we P Administrative @) Saperd 

SUBJECT: Ordinend Rahs li ag th he se € pi ued 
? Supply 3 de TT LnS » th Pde oy Per \N) Waler 

A\ethe Se Ue WL N\ 

AYES NAYES ig ik ABSTAINED 

  

  

  

  1. BIONDO, TED 

  BOOKER, AARON 

BOOMER, DAVID 

CROSBY, JEAN 

  

  

  nl
 

a]
 
w
e
 

FELLARS, DANIEL 

  6. FIDUCCIA, DAVID 

  7. GERL, BURT ov 

8. GORAL, ANGIE   

  9. HOFFMAN, JOE 

  10. JURY, GARY 

  11. KELLEY, DAVID 

  12. MCDONALD, KEITH 

  13. NICOLOSI, ELI 

  14. REDD, DOROTHY 

  15. SALGADO, JAIME 

  16. SCHULTZ, STEVE 

  17. TASSONI, DAVID 

  18. WEBSTER, JIM 

  
19. WESCOTT, FRED J 

  20. WILSON, L.C. 

    TOTALS You Vole Is )             
 



BAXTER ROADBAXTER ROADBAXTER ROADBAXTER ROADBAXTER ROADBAXTER ROADBAXTER ROADBAXTER ROADBAXTER ROADBAXTER ROADBAXTER ROADBAXTER ROADBAXTER ROADBAXTER ROADBAXTER ROADBAXTER ROADBAXTER ROAD

LI
N

D
EN

W
O

O
D

 R
O

AD
LI

N
D

EN
W

O
O

D
 R

O
AD

LI
N

D
EN

W
O

O
D

 R
O

AD
LI

N
D

EN
W

O
O

D
 R

O
AD

LI
N

D
EN

W
O

O
D

 R
O

AD
LI

N
D

EN
W

O
O

D
 R

O
AD

LI
N

D
EN

W
O

O
D

 R
O

AD
LI

N
D

EN
W

O
O

D
 R

O
AD

LI
N

D
EN

W
O

O
D

 R
O

AD
LI

N
D

EN
W

O
O

D
 R

O
AD

LI
N

D
EN

W
O

O
D

 R
O

AD
LI

N
D

EN
W

O
O

D
 R

O
AD

LI
N

D
EN

W
O

O
D

 R
O

AD
LI

N
D

EN
W

O
O

D
 R

O
AD

LI
N

D
EN

W
O

O
D

 R
O

AD
LI

N
D

EN
W

O
O

D
 R

O
AD

LI
N

D
EN

W
O

O
D

 R
O

AD

LI
N

D
EN

W
O

O
D

 R
O

AD
LI

N
D

EN
W

O
O

D
 R

O
AD

LI
N

D
EN

W
O

O
D

 R
O

AD
LI

N
D

EN
W

O
O

D
 R

O
AD

LI
N

D
EN

W
O

O
D

 R
O

AD
LI

N
D

EN
W

O
O

D
 R

O
AD

LI
N

D
EN

W
O

O
D

 R
O

AD
LI

N
D

EN
W

O
O

D
 R

O
AD

LI
N

D
EN

W
O

O
D

 R
O

AD
LI

N
D

EN
W

O
O

D
 R

O
AD

LI
N

D
EN

W
O

O
D

 R
O

AD
LI

N
D

EN
W

O
O

D
 R

O
AD

LI
N

D
EN

W
O

O
D

 R
O

AD
LI

N
D

EN
W

O
O

D
 R

O
AD

LI
N

D
EN

W
O

O
D

 R
O

AD
LI

N
D

EN
W

O
O

D
 R

O
AD

LI
N

D
EN

W
O

O
D

 R
O

AD

E. EDSON ROADE. EDSON ROADE. EDSON ROADE. EDSON ROADE. EDSON ROADE. EDSON ROADE. EDSON ROADE. EDSON ROADE. EDSON ROADE. EDSON ROADE. EDSON ROADE. EDSON ROADE. EDSON ROADE. EDSON ROADE. EDSON ROADE. EDSON ROADE. EDSON ROAD

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
0

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
0

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
0

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
0

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
0

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
0

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
0

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
0

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
0

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
0

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
0

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
0

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
0

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
0

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
0

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
0

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
0

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

00
9

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

00
9

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

00
9

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

00
9

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

00
9

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

00
9

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

00
9

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

00
9

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

00
9

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

00
9

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

00
9

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

00
9

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

00
9

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

00
9

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

00
9

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

00
9

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

00
9

PIN 1631376012PIN 1631376012PIN 1631376012PIN 1631376012PIN 1631376012PIN 1631376012PIN 1631376012PIN 1631376012PIN 1631376012PIN 1631376012PIN 1631376012PIN 1631376012PIN 1631376012PIN 1631376012PIN 1631376012PIN 1631376012PIN 1631376012

PIN 1631100020PIN 1631100020PIN 1631100020PIN 1631100020PIN 1631100020PIN 1631100020PIN 1631100020PIN 1631100020PIN 1631100020PIN 1631100020PIN 1631100020PIN 1631100020PIN 1631100020PIN 1631100020PIN 1631100020PIN 1631100020PIN 1631100020

PIN 1631376004PIN 1631376004PIN 1631376004PIN 1631376004PIN 1631376004PIN 1631376004PIN 1631376004PIN 1631376004PIN 1631376004PIN 1631376004PIN 1631376004PIN 1631376004PIN 1631376004PIN 1631376004PIN 1631376004PIN 1631376004PIN 1631376004

PIN 1631376005PIN 1631376005PIN 1631376005PIN 1631376005PIN 1631376005PIN 1631376005PIN 1631376005PIN 1631376005PIN 1631376005PIN 1631376005PIN 1631376005PIN 1631376005PIN 1631376005PIN 1631376005PIN 1631376005PIN 1631376005PIN 1631376005

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
3

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
3

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
3

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
3

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
3

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
3

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
3

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
3

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
3

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
3

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
3

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
3

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
3

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
3

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
3

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
3

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
3

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

00
6

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

00
6

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

00
6

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

00
6

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

00
6

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

00
6

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

00
6

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

00
6

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

00
6

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

00
6

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

00
6

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

00
6

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

00
6

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

00
6

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

00
6

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

00
6

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

00
6

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
1

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
1

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
1

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
1

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
1

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
1

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
1

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
1

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
1

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
1

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
1

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
1

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
1

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
1

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
1

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
1

PI
N

 1
63

13
76

01
1

PIN 1631376001PIN 1631376001PIN 1631376001PIN 1631376001PIN 1631376001PIN 1631376001PIN 1631376001PIN 1631376001PIN 1631376001PIN 1631376001PIN 1631376001PIN 1631376001PIN 1631376001PIN 1631376001PIN 1631376001PIN 1631376001PIN 1631376001

PIN 1631326003PIN 1631326003PIN 1631326003PIN 1631326003PIN 1631326003PIN 1631326003PIN 1631326003PIN 1631326003PIN 1631326003PIN 1631326003PIN 1631326003PIN 1631326003PIN 1631326003PIN 1631326003PIN 1631326003PIN 1631326003PIN 1631326003

PIN 1631326002PIN 1631326002PIN 1631326002PIN 1631326002PIN 1631326002PIN 1631326002PIN 1631326002PIN 1631326002PIN 1631326002PIN 1631326002PIN 1631326002PIN 1631326002PIN 1631326002PIN 1631326002PIN 1631326002PIN 1631326002PIN 1631326002

PIN 1631100021PIN 1631100021PIN 1631100021PIN 1631100021PIN 1631100021PIN 1631100021PIN 1631100021PIN 1631100021PIN 1631100021PIN 1631100021PIN 1631100021PIN 1631100021PIN 1631100021PIN 1631100021PIN 1631100021PIN 1631100021PIN 1631100021

PIN 1631100017PIN 1631100017PIN 1631100017PIN 1631100017PIN 1631100017PIN 1631100017PIN 1631100017PIN 1631100017PIN 1631100017PIN 1631100017PIN 1631100017PIN 1631100017PIN 1631100017PIN 1631100017PIN 1631100017PIN 1631100017PIN 1631100017

PIN 1631200010PIN 1631200010PIN 1631200010PIN 1631200010PIN 1631200010PIN 1631200010PIN 1631200010PIN 1631200010PIN 1631200010PIN 1631200010PIN 1631200010PIN 1631200010PIN 1631200010PIN 1631200010PIN 1631200010PIN 1631200010PIN 1631200010

PIN 1631400001PIN 1631400001PIN 1631400001PIN 1631400001PIN 1631400001PIN 1631400001PIN 1631400001PIN 1631400001PIN 1631400001PIN 1631400001PIN 1631400001PIN 1631400001PIN 1631400001PIN 1631400001PIN 1631400001PIN 1631400001PIN 1631400001

PIN 1631400003PIN 1631400003PIN 1631400003PIN 1631400003PIN 1631400003PIN 1631400003PIN 1631400003PIN 1631400003PIN 1631400003PIN 1631400003PIN 1631400003PIN 1631400003PIN 1631400003PIN 1631400003PIN 1631400003PIN 1631400003PIN 1631400003

PIN 1631400002PIN 1631400002PIN 1631400002PIN 1631400002PIN 1631400002PIN 1631400002PIN 1631400002PIN 1631400002PIN 1631400002PIN 1631400002PIN 1631400002PIN 1631400002PIN 1631400002PIN 1631400002PIN 1631400002PIN 1631400002PIN 1631400002

PIN 1631400001PIN 1631400001PIN 1631400001PIN 1631400001PIN 1631400001PIN 1631400001PIN 1631400001PIN 1631400001PIN 1631400001PIN 1631400001PIN 1631400001PIN 1631400001PIN 1631400001PIN 1631400001PIN 1631400001PIN 1631400001PIN 1631400001

0

FEET

300 600

1'' = 300'

0
1 

in

20144696
CONTROL
0002-009

FIGURE
A

2022-06-17

GLS

KT

ACME SOLVENT SUPERFUND SITE

ACME RD/RA GROUP

EXHIBIT A 
TITLE

PROJECT NO. REV.

PROJECT

CLIENT

IF
 T

H
IS

 M
EA

SU
R

EM
EN

T 
D

O
ES

 N
O

T 
M

AT
C

H
 W

H
AT

 IS
 S

H
O

W
N

, T
H

E 
SH

EE
T 

SI
ZE

 H
AS

 B
EE

N
 M

O
D

IF
IE

D
 F

R
O

M
: A

R
C

H
 D

CONSULTANT

PREPARED

DESIGNED

REVIEWED

APPROVED

YYYY-MM-DD

Pa
th

: \
\g

ol
de

r.g
ds

\C
om

pl
ex

D
at

a\
of

fic
e\

M
tL

au
re

l\C
ad

d\
Pr

oj
ec

ts
\A

cm
eS

ol
ve

nt
\R

oc
kf

or
dT

w
pI

L\
99

_P
R

O
JE

C
TS

\2
01

44
69

6\
00

02
_L

an
df

illA
gr

ee
m

en
t\0

2_
PR

O
D

U
C

TI
O

N
\D

W
G

\  
|  

Fi
le

 N
am

e:
 2

01
44

69
6-

00
02

-0
09

.d
w

g 
 | 

 L
as

t E
di

te
d 

By
: a

m
or

al
es

  D
at

e:
  2

02
2-

07
-1

8 
 T

im
e:

2:
47

:3
3 

PM
  |

  P
rin

te
d 

By
: A

M
or

al
es

   
D

at
e:

 2
02

2-
07

-1
8 

 T
im

e:
3:

37
:0

2 
PM

LEGEND

REFERENCE(S)

1. PARCEL BOUNDARIES TAKEN FROM KOORDINATES.COM
2. AERIAL FROM GOOGLE EARTH PRO (2021)

GROUNDWATER USE RESTRICTION ORDINANCE AREA



Background 

From the 1960s to 1970s, Acme  

Solvent Reclaiming Inc. (the Acme  

Company) disposed of waste liquids and 

sludge on its 20-acre site located on  

Lindenwood Road in Winnebago County, 
IL. The Acme Company transported these 
materials to the Site from its nearby 

solvent recycling business.  

In 1981, State investigations found  

volatile organic compounds (VOCs) and 

other contaminants  in the soil and 

groundwater on the Site. The U.S.  

Environmental Protection Agency 

(USEPA) in 1983 added the 20-acre Site 

to its Superfund program’s National 

Priorities List. 

In 1992, the USEPA entered into a 

Consent Decree with 31 parties,  

collectively referenced as the Acme 

Solvents RD/RA Group (the Group). The 
majority of these parties had hired the 

Acme Company to reclaim their used 

solvents from their manufacturing  

operations, allowing them to be reused.  

Because the Acme Company was  

insolvent, the Group agreed to clean up 

the soil and groundwater contaminated by 

the Acme Company’s operations. As part  

of the remedy for the Site and per the 

USEPA’s direction, the Group closed 

nearby shallow drinking water wells and 

constructed an alternate water supply 

(AWS) for affected parcels near the Site. 

In collaboration with the USEPA, the 

Group has conducted significant cleanup 

of the Site, including removing and  

treating contaminated soil, installing and 

operating a soil-vapor extraction system, 

installing and operating a groundwater 

pump-and-treat system, and constructing 

an AWS pipeline to serve the affected 

neighboring properties.  

Additionally, Winnebago County passed 

in November 2018 County Ordinance 

2018 CO 92 to prohibit installation 

Fact Sheet 

(Continued on opposite side.) 

October 2022 Acme Solvents RD/RA Group

of wells for drinking water at the Site 

and a number of surrounding parcels. 

The Group continues regularly to  

monitor groundwater quality at the Site 

and surrounding area and is conducting 

additional work to finalize cleanup and 

remediation of the Site.  

Historical Land Use 

In the 1980s, agriculture, quarrying,  

single-family dwellings and landfill  

operations were the primary uses of the 

land surrounding the Site. Over time,   

Winnebago Reclamation Services 

(WRS), the primary landfill operator, 

acquired property in the area and 

expanded operations.  

Today, the area largely is industrial. 

WRS owns and operates landfills to the 

west, south and east of the Site. The 

Northern Illinois Rifle & Pistol Club 

(NIRPC), the Rockford Skeet Club

(acquired by NIRPC) and a quarry

bound the Site to the north.  

How nearby parcels receive water  

For almost 30 years, the Group has 

purchased and provided water via the 

AWS pipeline from a supply well  

operated by neighboring WRS. This large 

supply well (the Great Well or Well 1), is 

northwest of the Site, outside the current 

footprint of the County ordinance.  

Today, only two remaining properties (a 
private residence and the Rockford Skeet 
Club) listed under the Consent Decree

continue to use drinking water provided

by the Group; however, WRS in 2019 
terminated the agreement providing the 
Group's access to supply Well 1, and 
WRS asserted its right to disconnect the 
water supply at any time and without 
notice.

As a result, the Group has been seeking a 

clean, reliable, convenient and permanent 

AWS for the remaining two nearby  

property owners, continuing to fulfill its 

obligations under the Consent Decree.  



The Ironton-Galesville Solution 

The Group and its experienced team of 
environmental and engineering 
consultants have considered all options, 
and with no nearby municipal water 

supply, have determined the only safe and

viable water supply in the area is at depths 

below the impacted upper aquifer under 

the Site. Tapping into this safe, deep-

water supply involves installing and 

operating new wells in the deep  

Ironton-Galesville aquifer.  

In September 2022, the USEPA approved 

the Group’s use of the Ironton-Galesville 

wells as the AWS source of drinking 

water to serve the two properties, the  
Rockford Skeet Club and the remaining 
occupied residence in the groundwater 
ordinance area.

The aquifer system within the footprint of 

the County Ordinance has multiple 

layers, that together, extend hundreds of 

feet below ground surface. The  water-

bearing layers include the shallow  

Galena-Platteville, the intermediate  

St. Peter Sandstone, and the deep  

Ironton-Galesville aquifer.  

Estimated to be more than 700 feet deep 

near the Site, the Ironton-Galesville 

aquifer is highly productive, yielding up 

to 500 gallons per minute of drinking 

water. The shallow Galena-Platteville is 

the most vulnerable to industrial and 

commercial operations.  

In contrast, the deep Ironton-Galesville is 

protected naturally by two rock layers 

called “semi-confining layers,” that 

inhibit downward flow.  

To prevent downward flow from the 

Galena to the Ironton-Galesville, the 

Group will “seat and seal” wells into 

confining layers and fill outside the 

casing with cement grout, thereby  

isolating and protecting the Ironton-

Galesville aquifer, as required by the 
Illinois Water Well Construction Code. 

The Group also is requesting the 
Ordinance amendment allow potential 
installation of an Ironton drinking water 
well on certain parcels owned by the 
Landfill, with the ultimate goal of 
replacing the Landfill’s well now 
installed in the St. Peter Sandstone. The 
location of these parcels is close to one 
of the USEPA-approved areas farther 
from the Site that will receive a new 
deep well.  

10/13/22

Proposed Well Construction 

Ordinance to support the AWS 
The November 2018 ordinance prohibits 
the installation of wells for drinking  
water at the Site and a number of  
surrounding parcels, regardless of the 
well depth. The Group is requesting  
Winnebago County modify the 
Ordinance to allow access to the Ironton-
Galesville aquifer, which will preserve 
the  protections of the Ordinance while 
allowing the only viable option for the 
two affected parcels to continue to 
receive water. 

Supplying water to the private residence 
and the NIRPC-owned Rockford Skeet 
Club remains the Group’s obligation 
under the Consent Decree, and in the 

absence of any nearby municipal water 
supply, tapping into the Ironton-

Galesville aquifer remains the only 

option to serve these parcels. 






	AGENDA
	APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MARCH 16, 2023
	RESOLUTION APPROVING A PROPOSAL FOR THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES OF LARSON & DARBY GROUP
	RESOLUTION TO APPROVE PURCHASE OF VEHICLES FOR SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT WITH CIP PSST 2023 FUNDS
	RESOLUTION AWARDING JOINT PEST CONTROL SERVICES
	RESOLUTION AMENDING THE ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE OF THE RIVER BLUFF NURSING HOME BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	AN ORDINANCE AMENDING “ORDINANCE 2018 CO 092”, PROHIBITING THE USE OF GROUND WATER AS A POTABLE WATER SUPPLY BY THE INSTALLATION OR USE OF POTABLE WATER SUPPLY WELLS OR BY ANY OTHER METHOD



